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AGREEMENT TO SETTLE CASES SEEKING JUDICIAL REVIEW OF
THE 2008 STREAM BUFFER ZONE RULE

WHEREAS, on December 12, 2008, the Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and
Enforcement (“OSM”) of the United States Department of the Interior (“DOI”) promulgated a
final rule entitled “Excess Spoil, Coal Mine Waste, and Buffers for Perennial and Intermittent
Streams” (“the 2008 SBZ Rule™) 73 Fed. Reg. 75,814;

WHEREAS, on December 22, 2008, a complaint seeking judicial review of the 2008
SBZ Rule was filed in the U.S. District Court of the District of Columbia by Coal River
Mountain Watch, Kentucky Waterways Alliance, Ohio Valley Environmental Coalition, Save
Our Cumberland Mountains, Sierra Club, Southern Appalachian Mountain Stewards,
Waterkeeper Alliance, and West Virginia Highlands Conservancy (collectively, the “Coal River
Plaintiffs”), under the case caption Coal River Mountain Watch, et al. v, Kempthorne, et al.,
Case No. 1:08-cv-02212;

WHEREAS, the Coal River Plaintiffs allege that OSM’s promulgation of the 2008 SBZ
Rule violated the Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act (“SMCRA”), 33 U.S.C. § 1265,
and the Administrative Procedure Act (“APA”), 5 U.S.C. § 706, and that OSM’s final
environmental impact statement for the rule violated the National Environmental Policy Act
(“NEPA”), 42 US.C. § 4332. The Coal River Plaintiffs further allege that the United States
Environmental Protection Agency’s (“EPA’s”) concurrence in the rule pursuant to section 501 of
SMCRA, 33 U.S.C. § 1251, violated the Clean Wéter Act (“CWA™), 33 U.S.C. § 125] et seq.,
and the APA;

WHEREAS, on January 16, 2009, the National Parks Conservation Association
(“NPCA”) filed a separate complaint in the U.S. District Court for the District of Columbia

seeking judicial review of the 2008 SBZ Rule under the case caption NPCA v. Kempthorne et
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al., Case No. 1:09-cv-00115, which NPCA amended on February 13, 2009. NPCA’s Amended
Complaint alleges that OSM’s promulgation of the 2008 SBZ Rule violated SMCRA, section
7(a)(2) of the Endangered Species Act (“ESA”), 16 U.S.C. § 1536(a)(2), and the APA, and
further alleges that EPA’s concurrence in the 2008 SBZ Rule violated section 7(a)(2) of the
ESA, the Clean Water Act and its implementing regulations;

WHEREAS, both complaints seek, inter alia, vacatur of the 2008 SBZ Rule and
reasonable costs of litigation including attorney’s fees;

WHEREAS, the complaints collectively name the Secretary of the Interior, the Director
of OSM, and the EPA Administrator as defendants (collectively, “the Federal Defendants™). The
National Mining Association has also intervened in both cases as a defendant;

WHEREAS, the Federal Defendants have not answered either complaint;

WHEREAS, on April 24, 2009, the Federal Defendants moved in the NPCA case for a
voluntary remand and vacatur of the 2008 SBZ Rule on the grounds that the Secretary of the
Interior had determined OSM erred by failing to initiate consultation pursuant to the ESA in
connection with 2008 SBZ rulemaking, as alleged in NPCA’s Amended Complaint. The Court
denied this motion in a Memorandum Opinion and Order dated August 12, 2009, holding that
vacatur of the rule without public notice aﬁd comment would, under the circumstances, violate
the APA;

WHEREAS, OSM now plans to conduct a notice and comment rulemaking under
SMCRA to establish a new rule to amend or replace the 2008 SBZ Rule, including a new
environmental impact statement, under the schedule set forth below;

WHEREAS, OSM published in the Federal Register an Advance Notice of Proposed
Rulemaking, for which it requested public comment by December 30, 2009, and intends to use

best efforts to sign a proposed rule by February 2011; and
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WHEREAS, in light of OSM’s intentions, the Coal River Plaintiffs, NPCA and the
Federal Defendants (collectively the “Settling Parties™) wish to resolve this matter without any
further litigation;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Settling Parties, each intending to be bound by this Agreement,
hereby agree as follows:

1. OSM shall make best efforts to sign no later than Monday, February 28, 2011, a
proposed rule to amend or replace the 2008 SBZ Rule, which it shall promptly thereafter submit
for publication in the Federal Register.

2. OSM shall make best efforts to sign a final action on the proposed rule described
in Paragraph 1 no later than Friday, June 29, 2012, which it shall promptly thereafter submit for
publication in the Federal Register. |

3. In connection with the rulemaking described in Paragraphs 1 and 2, OSM shall
consult pursuant to the ESA as appropriate prior to signing the final action.

4. No later than March 19, 2010, the Federal Defendants and the Plaintiffs will file

joint motions for stay of the pending complaints in Coal River Mountain Watch, et al. v.

Kempthorne, et al., Case No. 1:08-cv-02212, and NPCA v. Kempthorne et al., Case No. 1:09-cv-

001135, pending completion of, and subject to, the terms of this agreement. If OSM fails to sign
the proposed rule reférred to in Paragraph 1 by February 28, 2011, or fails to sign a final action
on that proposed rule by June 29, 2012, the sole remedy under this agreement shall be to ask the
Court to lift the stay and establish a schedule for further proceedings. Plaintiffs must give
Federal Defendants 30 days notice before requesting that the stay be lifted. The Coal River
Plaintiffs and NPCA each agree that they shall not seek lifting the stay under any other

circumstance.
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5. Within 30 days of OSM’s completion of the actions specified in Paragraph 1 and
Paragraph 2 above, Plaintiffs shall dismiss their complaints with prejudice. The Settling Parties
agree that, for purposes of determining preclusive effect, such dismissal shall apply only to the
claims raised in the complaints specifically challenging the 2008 SBZ Rule and EPA’s
concurrence therein. All other claims and defenses are specifically reserved as set forth in
Paragraph 10 below.

6. Under no circumstance shall any provision of this Agreement be the basis for any
action for specific performance, mandamus, or any other remedy seeking to compel OSM, or any
other department, agency or instrumentality of the United States, to take any of the actions
described in Paragraphs 1, 2 and 3.

7. The Federal Defendants agree that an award of Plaintiffs’ reasonable costs of
litigation, incurred through March 19, 2010 (the Effective Date of this Agreement), ihcluding
attorney5s fees, is appropriate in light of this settlement agreement, and agree to pay a reasonable
amount of such fees and costs to the Coal River Plaintiffs and NPCA pursuant to the ESA, 16
U.S.C. § 1540 (g), SMCRA, 30 U.S.C. § 1270(d), and/or the Equal Access to Justice Act
(“EAJA™), 28 U.S.C. § 2412. All parties reserve their rights and defenses for any fees and costs
incurred after the Effective Date. The Settling Parties agree to attempt in good faifh to resolve
Plaintiffs’ claims for fees and costs ¢xpeditiously and without the need for Court intervention,
and to that end, the Plaintiffs will submit to the Federal Defendants any claim for fees and costs
incurred by the Effective Date at a time sufficient to allow good faith negotiations regarding, and
resolution of], that claim before dismissal of the lawsuits. Notwithstanding dismissal of the
complaints pursuant to Paragraph 5, the Court shall retain jurisdiction over each complaint for
the purpose of resolving any dispute regarding Plaintiffs’ claims for an award of fees and costs
under the ESA or SMCRA. If either the Coal River Plaintiffs or NPCA is unable to agree with
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the Federal Defendants on a reasonable amount of fees and costs incurred through March 19,
2010 under the ESA, SMCRA, and/or EAJA, an application to the Court seeking an award of
such fees and costs shall be filed no earlier than 30 days, and no later than 60 days, after the
Effective Date of this Agreement. By this Agreement, the Federal Defendants do not waive any
right to contest fees or cosfs claimed bS/ Plaintiffs, including but not limited to the claimed
hourly rate, in any continuation of the present action or any future litigation.

8. The Effective Date of this Agreement shall be the date on which representatives
of all of the Settling Parties have signed the Agreement.

9. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to limit or modify the discretion
accorded to OSM, DOI, or EPA under SMCRA, the ESA, NEPA, the CWA, or any othef
applicable law or regulation.

10.  Except as set forth in this Agreement, each Settling Party retains any and all
rights, claims or defenses it may otherwise have.

11.  This Agreement shall not constitute an admission or evidence of any fact,
wrongdoing, misconduct, or liability on the part of the Federal Defendants, their officers, or any
person affiliated with them.

12.  The commitments of the Federal Defendants in this Settlement Agreement are
subject to the availability of appropriated funds applicable for those purposes. No provision of
this Agreement shall be interpreted as or constitute a commitment or requirement that any
department, agency or instrumentality of the United States of America obligate or pay funds in
contravention of the Anti-Deficiency Act, 31 U.S.C. § 1341-44 and 1511-19, or any other
applicable provision of law.

13.  Any term set forth in this Agreement may be modified by written agreement of
the Settling Parties.

Page 5 of 10



Case 1:08-cv-02212-HHK Document 29-2 Filed 03/19/10 Page 6 of 12

14.  Nothing in this Agreement shall bind, obligate, or otherwise create any rights or
duties applicable to or enforceable by, or impose any conditions or limitations upon, any person
or entity that has not signed the Agreement, nor shall the Agreement be construed to make any
such person or entity a third-party beneficiary of the Agreement.

15. Any notices required or provided for by this Agreement shall be made in writing,
via facsimile, electronic mail, or other means, and sent to the following:

For the Coal River Plaintiffs:
JENNIFER C. CHAVEZ

Earthjustice

1625 Massachusetts Avenue, NW, Suite 702
Washington, D.C. 20036

Telephone: (202) 667-4500

Facsimile: (202) 667-2356
E-mail: jchavez@earthjustice.org

JOSEPH M. LOVETT
Appalachian Citizens Law Center
P.O. Box 507

Lewisburg, WV 24901

AARON ISHERWOOD
85 Second Street, 2™ Floor
San Francisco, CA 94105

STEVE SANDERS

MARY CROMER

Appalachian Citizens Law Center
52 Broadway, Suite B
Whitesburg, KY 41858

SCOTT EDWARDS
Waterkeeper Alliance

50 S. Buckhout Suite 302
Irvington, NY 10533

For NPCA:
DEBORAH M. MURRAY
Southern Environmental Law Center

201 West Main Street, Suite 14
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Charlottesville, VA 22902
Telephone: (434) 977-4090
Facsimile: (434) 977-1483
E-mail: dmurray@selcva.org

For the Federal Defendants:

BRIAN H. LYNK

Trial Attorney

Environmental Defense Section
United States Department of Justice
P.O. Box 23986

Washington, D.C. 20026-3986 -
Telephone: (202) 514-6187
Facsimile: (202) 514-8865

E-mail: brian.lynk@usdoj.gov
Alternate address for non-U.S. Postal Service deliveries:
601 D Street, NW, Suite 8000
Washington, D.C. 20004

RUTH ANN STOREY

Trial Attorney

Natural Resources Section

United States Department of Justice
P.O. Box 663

Washington, D.C. 20044-0663
Telephone: (202) 305-0493
Facsimile: (202) 514-8865

E-mail: ruth.ann.storey@usdoj.gov

Alternate address for non-U.S. Postal Service deliveries:
601 D Street, NW, 3™ Floor
Washington, D.C. 20004

MARK ARTHUR BROWN

Senior Trial Attorney

Wildlife & Marine Resources Section
United States Department of Justice
P.O. Box 7369

Washington, D.C. 20044-7369
Telephone: (202) 305-0204
Facsimile: (202) 305-0275

E-mail: mark.brown@usdoj.gov

Alternate address for non-U.S. Postal Service deliveries:
601 D Street, NW, Room 3036
Washington, D.C. 20004
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16.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of original counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed to constitute one agreement. - The execution of one counterpart by any
Settling Party shall have the same force and effect as if that Settling Party had signed all other
counterparts.

17.  This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement of the Settling Parties
with respect to the subject matter addressed herein. There are no warranties or representations,
oral or written, relating to the subject matter hereof that are not fully expressed or provided for
herein.

18.  The undersigned representatives of each Settling Party certify that they are fully
authorized by the Settling Party that they represent to bind that Settling Party to the terms of this

Agreement.

Page 8 of 10



Case 1:08-cv-02212-HHK Document 29-2 Filed 03/19/10 Page 9 of 12

For the Coal River Plaintiffs: For NPCA:
JENNIFER C. CHAVEZ DEBORAH M. MURRAY
Earthjustice Southern Environmental Law Center
1625 Massachusetts Avenue, NW 201 West Main Street, Suite 14
Suite 702 Charlottesville, VA 22902
Washington, D.C. 20036 Telephone: (434) 977-4090
Telephone: (202) 667-4500 Facsimile: (434) 977-1483
Facsimile: (202) 667-2356 E-mail: dmurray@selcva.org
E-mail: jchavez@earthjustice.org Counsel for Plaintiff National Parks
Counsel for Plaintiffs West Virginia Conservation Association
Highlands Conservancy, Coal River
Mountain Watch, and Ohio Valley Dated:

Environmental Coalition
For the Federal Defendants:

Dated:
IGNACIA MORENO
Assistant Attorney General
Environment and Natural Resources
JOSEPH M. LOVETT Division
Appalachian Citizens Law Center
P.O. Box 507
Lewisburg, WV 24901 By: —
Counsel for Plaintiffs Sierra Club, BRIAN H. LYNK, TrigJ/Attomey
West Virginia Highlands Conservancy, Environmental Defense Section
Southern Appalachian Mountain United States Department of Justice
Stewards, and Kentucky Waterways P.O. Box 23986
Alliance Washington, D.C. 20026-3986
Telephone: (202) 514-6187
Dated: Facsimile: (202) 514-8865

E-mail: brian.lynk@usdoj.gov
Counsel for the Federal Defendants

AARON ISHERWOOD Dated: Méwz‘i« K ) 2010

85 Second Street, 2™ Floor

San Francisco, CA 94105

Counsel for Plaintiffs Sierra Club and
Southern Appalachian Mountain
Stewards

Dated:
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For the Coal River Plaintiffs:

For NPCA:

De vovalim WA L

JENNIFER C. CHAVEZ
Earthjustice

1625 Massachusetts Avenue, NW
Suite 702

Washington, D.C. 20036
Telephone: (202) 667-4500
Facsimile: (202) 667-2356

E-mail: jchavez@earthjustice.org
Counsel for Plaintiffs West Virginia
Highlands Conservancy, Coal River
Mountain Watch, and Ohio Valley
Environmental Coalition

Dated:

JOSEPH M. LOVETT

Appalachian Citizens Law Center
P.O. Box 507

Lewisburg, WV 24901

Counsel for Plaintiffs Sierra Club,
West Virginia Highlands Conservancy,
Southern Appalachian Mountain
Stewards, and Kentucky Waterways
Alliance

Dated:

AARON ISHERWOOD

85 Second Street, 2™ Floor

San Francisco, CA 94105

Counsel for Plaintiffs Sierra Club and
Southern Appalachian Mountain
Stewards

Dated:

DEBORAH M. MURRAY !
Southern Environmental Law Center
201 West Main Street, Suite 14
Charlofttesville, VA 22902
Telephone: (434) 977-4090
Facsimile: (434) 977-1483

E-mail: dmurray@selcva.org
Counsel for Plaintiff National Parks
Conservation Association

Dated: (4 MaAtdh 2010

For the Federal Defendants:

IGNACIA MORENO

Assistant Attorney General
Environment and Natural Resources
Division

By:

BRIAN H. LYNK, Trial Attorney
Environmental Defense Section
United States Department of Justice
P.O. Box 23986

Washington, D.C. 20026-3986
Telephone: (202) 514-6187
Facsimile: (202) 514-8865

E-mail: brian.lynk@usdoj.gov
Counsel for the Federal Defendants

Dated:
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For the Coal River Plaintiffs:

. C') (?
JEXNIFER C. CHAVEZ
Earthjustice
1625 Massachusetts Avenue, NW
Suite 702

" Washington, D.C. 20036
Telephone: (202) 667-4500
Facsimile: (202) 667-2356
E-mail: jchavez@earthjustice.org
Counsel for Plaintiffs West Virginia
Highlands Conservancy, Coal River
Mountain Watch, and Ohio Valley
Environmental Coalition

Dated: 3-/7-H010

OM I e TTec

JGSEPH'M. LOVETT

Appalachian Citizens Law Center

P.O. Box 507

Lewisburg, WV 24901

Counsel for Plaintiffs Sierra Club,
West Virginia Highlands Conservancy,
Southern Appalachian Mountain
Stewards, and Kentucky Waterways
Alliance

Dated: 3—-/[7-SO10

dﬁu?ﬂ'h %/Lem’m/ 29 rec

AARON ISHERWOOD

85 Second Street, 2™ Floor

San Francisco, CA 94105

Counsel for Plaintiffs Sierra Club and
Southern Appalachian Mountain
Stewards

Dated: 3~ /9~ K0/0

For NPCA:

DEBORAH M. MURRAY

Southern Environmental Law Center
201 West Main Street, Suite 14
Charlottesville, VA 22902
Telephone: (434) 977-4090
Facsimile: (434) 977-1483

E-mail: dmurray@selcva.org
Counsel for Plaintiff National Parks
Conservation Association

Dated:

For the Federal Defendants:

IGNACIA MORENO

Assistant Attorney General
Environment and Natural Resources
Division

- By:

BRIAN H. LYNK, Trial Attorney
Environmental Defense Section
United States Department of Justice
P.O. Box 23986

Washington, D.C. 20026-3986
Telephone: (202) 514-6187
Facsimile: (202) 514-8865

E-mail: brian.lynk@usdoj.gov
Counsel for the Federal Defendants

Dated:
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For the Coal River Plaintiffs (continued):

747/"'/’/‘1 &W«, o Jce
STEVE SANDERS
MARY CROMER
Appalachian Citizens Law Center
52 Broadway, Suite B
Whitesburg, KY 41858
Counsel for Plaintiff Save Qur
Cumberland Mountains

Dated: S-/9~ 5010

Aottt ELornds *gee

SCOTT EDWARDS
Waterkeeper Alliance

50 S. Buckhout Suite 302
Irvington, NY 10533

Counsel for Plaintiff Waterkeeper
Alliance

Dated: 3 -/%- 20/(0
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